ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 9, 2001
3:20 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lisa Murkowski, Chair
Represent ati ve Kevin Meyer
Representative Pete Kott
Representative Harry Crawford
Representati ve Joe Hayes

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Andrew Hal cro, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 58
"An Act relating to the calculation and paynent of unenploynent
conpensation benefits; and providing for an effective date."”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 58

SHORT TI TLE: UNEMPLOYMENT COVPENSATI ON BENEFI TS
SPONSOR(S): RLS BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

01/16/01 0089 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 16/ 01 0089 (H L&C, FIN

01/ 16/ 01 0089 (H) FN 1: ZERQ(LWF)

01/ 16/ 01 0089 (H FN 2: (ADM VARI QUS DEPTS)

01/ 16/ 01 0089 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER

01/ 16/ 01 0089 (H REFERRED TO LABOR & COMVERCE

02/ 28/ 01 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 28/ 01 (H Bill Postponed To 3/9/01

03/ 09/ 01 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

REBECCA GAMEZ, Deputy Conmi ssi oner

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- March 9, 2001



Depart ment of Labor and Wor kf orce Devel opnment ( DLVD)

P. 0. Box 21149

Juneau, Al aska 99802-1149

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that the departnment supports HB
58.

RON HULL, Acting D rector

Di vision of Enploynent Security

Depart ment of Labor and Wor kf orce Devel opnment ( DLVD)

P. 0. Box 21149

Juneau, Al aska 99802-1149

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information to the conmttee on HB
58.

CHUCK BLANKENSHI P, Program Manager

Unenpl oynment | nsurance Program

Di vision of Enploynent Security

Depart ment of Labor and Wor kf orce Devel opnment ( DLVD)

P. O Box 21149

Juneau, Al aska 99802-1149

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information to the conmttee on HB
58.

JOHN BROVWN

I nternational Union of Operating Engi neers (I UOCE)
Local 302

309 Juneau

Fai r banks, Al aska 99701

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 58.

KIM GARNERO, Director

Di vi si on of Fi nance

Department of Adm nistration

P. 0. Box 110204

Juneau, Al aska 99811-0204

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information on the fiscal note for
HB 58.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-30, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR LISA MJRKOABKI called the House Labor and Conmerce

Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 3:20 p.m Menber s
present at the call to order included Representatives Hayes,

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- March 9, 2001



Meyer, Crawford, Kott, and Mirkowksi. Representatives Halcro
and Rokeberg joined the neeting as it was in progress.

HB 58- UNEMPLOYMENT COVPENSATI ON BENEFI TS

Nunber 0021

CHAI R MURKOWBKI announced that the commttee would hear HOUSE
BILL NO 58, "An Act relating to the calculation and paynent of
unenpl oynent conpensation benefits; and providing for an
effective date.”

Number 0093

REBECCA GAMEZ, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnment of Labor and
Wor kf orce Devel opment (DLWD), testified in support of HB 58; the

bill would increase the maxinum weekly benefit anount of
Unenpl oynent I nsurance (U ). She said this piece of |egislation
cones before the legislature every four to six years; it has

been about five years since the last "go around.”

M5. GAMEZ stated that the bill does three things: it raises the
maxi mum weekly benefit anmount of U from $248 to $284 in the
first year; it raises the maxinmum from $284 to $320 in the
second year; and third, during the second year it attaches
itself to an indicator, which is the average weekly wage of
earners for the state.

Nunber 0246

M5. GAMEZ referred to a question-and-answer sheet provided to
the commttee by the DLMD. She said the average weekly wage [is
figured] by dividing the total of all covered wages for the
fiscal year ending June 30 by the average covered enploynent in
the state. The figure is divided by 52, for 52 weeks [in a
year], to obtain the average weekly wage, so [U benefits] would
be tied to that, she expl ai ned.

RON HULL, Acting Director, D vision of Enploynment Security,
Department of Labor and Workforce Devel opnment (DLWD), referred
to one of the charts provided by the departnent. The first
chart, entitled "State Average Wekly Wage Conparison 1999,"
depicts Alaska's ranking for an Al askan worker's average sal ary.
He said Al aska ranks nunmber 14 at $639.50 per week. He pointed
out that this [information] is tracked by the research and
anal ysis section [with the DLWD]. This consists of all covered
t axabl e wages, divided by the nunber of Al askans enployed; it

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- March 9, 2001



covers 97 percent of all wages, he said. The earnings of
corporate officers, elected officials, and those who are self-
enpl oyed are not included.

MR, HULL referred to the second chart, entitled "Federal Wge
Repl acenment Conpari son, CY 1999, Average V& Benefit as a Percent
of Average Wekly WAage." He said this conpares wage replacenent
with all other states; it shows that Alaska is "dead |ast,"
which is the issue that is addressed in HB 58. The data was
prepared by the United States Departnent of Labor (USDOL) under

the Governnent Performance Results Act (GPRA). The federal
governnment set three performance standards: wage repl acenent,
trust fund solvency, and the recipiency rate. Al aska is doing

fine on two of the three, but [the DLWD] is in front of the
commttee today because of the third one, he said.

Number 0437

MR. HULL referred to the next chart, entitled "Wage Repl acenent
Conparison 1999, Maxi num Wekly Benefit as a Percentage of

Average Weekly Wage." If [Alaska] gets to the maxi num weekly
benefit amount [WBA] of $320, he explained that it puts Al aska
just below the "mddle of the pack,” in the 28th position. Next

year, at $284, Al aska would be nunber 12 fromthe bottom

MR. HULL referred to a chart entitled "Al aska's Mxi num Wekly
Benefit  Anpunt Conmpared with 50 Percent Average \Weekly

Earnings.” He explained that this refers to the years 1980 to
2001, and shows what [Al aska] woul d have been paying if benefits
had been paid at the average weekly salary level. The increases

in wages in the past have been significant because Al aska has
wai ted so |l ong to make the changes.

MR. HULL referred to the chart entitled "Nunber of Two Dollar
Increases in Calculation of [the] 50 Percent Average Wekly
Earnings.” This attenpts to ease the fears of the potential for
wildly shifting tax rates, he said. "W" went back to 1990, and
for each year through the current year, calculated increases at
$2 increnents and [figured out] what it would cost the U trust
fund. A $2 increase represents a cost of $200,000 to the U
trust fund, and an increase of $500,000 in benefits equates to
an annual cost of $3 per worker for the average tax class

enpl oyer.
Number 0567

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- March 9, 2001



MR. HULL, still referring to the chart, said the nunber "1" on
the top bar, referring to years 1990, 1993, 1997, and 2001,

indi cates one increase of $2 in weekly U benefits. This one
increase would cost the average enployer $1.20 in taxes per
enpl oyee per year. This increase would only be for those

earning the maxi nrum taxabl e wage. The nunber "4" [on the chart]
is for years 1991 and 1992, which would increase to $8 in weekly

U benefits, and an increase of taxes of $5 per enployee. He
pointed out that during this sane period, 1990 to 2001, Al aska
rai sed benefits $90. If it had been attached to the average

weekly wage, Al aska would have raised them only $36; [having it
tied to an indicator] stops the fluctuations, he said.

Number 0640

MR. HULL referred to the chart entitled "Al aska Wage Repl acenent
[ Conpared] to Washington [State] Wage Replacenent.” This shows
that Alaska is close to Washington [state] in average weekly
wage, but in the maximum weekly benefit amount, there is a
disparity between what "we" expect Al askans to get by on when
they are tenporarily unenpl oyed.

Nunmber 0665

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked how | ong soneone is eligible for U
He said according to the packet, the average claim duration is
14.9 weeks, which equates to alnost four nonths. He remarked
that it seens like a |long period for soneone to be unenpl oyed.

MR. HULL responded that the other two prograns within the DLW

work on that. The worker profiling system tries to get people
back [to work] by giving them classes on resune [witing], job
search, and job-hunting [skills]; it is for those people likely

to run out of benefits before going back to work.
Nunber 0789

CHUCK  BLANKENSHI P, Program Manager, Unenpl oynent | nsur ance
Program Division of Enploynent Security, Departnent of Labor
and Workforce Devel opnent (DLWD), said there is a fornula that
calculates duration [of benefits] based on the worker's
attachnment to the |abor narket. If a person has worked 12
nont hs straight on a normal basis and | oses his or her job, this
person would have a |onger-duration claim Those that nornmally
work nore intermttently would have shorter-duration [clains];
the duration ranges from 16 to 26 weeks.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- March 9, 2001



MR. BLANKENSHI P, responding to a question about whether the

claims formula is a federal fornula, said it isn't. The 26-week
maxi num [weekly benefit amount] is common and there are other
federal requirenments that limt states to 26 weeks. He said

[ Al aska's formula] conpares the total wages on which the claim
is based to the quarter with the highest dollar anpbunt, and the
formula that [HB 58] affects is in statute.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked what percentage of claimnts are
seasonal workers.

MR. BLANKENSHI P replied that he didn't have that information but
could get it for the conmttee.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said the average weekly wage is one-
di rensional; Alaska has a different |abor force and job market
up here. The ampunt of benefits paid out and the rel ationship
to the trust fund is extrenely inportant. It would be hel pful
for the commttee to see the length of time and dollars per
capita paid out on a conparative basis, because it mght be
different. He surm sed that people would be on U |onger here
than in other "jurisdictions."

MR. HULL said [Alaska' s] average is 14.9 [weeks], and 15 weeks
is the average nationw de.

Nunber 1019

MR. BLANKENSHI P explained that the 14.9-week duration is the
entire duration for a one-year benefit period. An i ndi vi dual
peri od of unenpl oynent conpensation is generally closer to eight
to nine weeks, he said. And [Al aska] has a l|arge nunber of
enpl oyees that may have nore than one "spell"” of work during the

course of a year.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if Alaska would be changing the
average weekly wage fornula [under HB 58].

MR. HULL responded that the fornula remains in place; all the
bill does is raise the anount in two increments and tie it to an
i ndicator, which is 50 percent of the average weekly wage. The
formula in statute renmains in place.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said, in looking at the characteristics
supplied by the DLW from 1999, over 50 percent [of the
unenpl oyed] are in sone of the l|argest urban centers of the
state; these folks aren't in isolated rural villages, but are in

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- March 9, 2001



urban centers, and there seens to be a lot of enploynent out
there. He asked why there would be such a large percentage from
urban areas, if the [enploynent] is in fact seasonal

MR.  HULL responded that this is because of tourism and
construction, which are big [enployers] in urban areas and have
t he bi ggest inpact on seasonality.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO referred to the chart broken down by
category [with the reference year of] 1999. He observed that
construction wasn't even the highest [category]; "services" was.
He said he woul d assune "services" incorporates |arge departnent
stores, and so forth.

MR. HULL responded affirmatively, but pointed out that tourism
also falls under this [category].

Nunber 1220

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT said we tend to think of fisherman as being
in the category that would draw U, but many of these fishernen
are self-enployed and don't pay into the U program and thus
aren't eligible [to receive benefits].

MR. HULL confirnmed that Representative Kott was correct in his
assessnment.

CHAI R MURKOABKI asked where the seafood industry [would fall] in
the categories, because she understood that area had an
exceptionally high turnover and nunber of [U] clainmants.

MR, HULL said it would be under manufacturing, but said the DLW
woul d doubl e-check that.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked about interstate benefits. Referring to a
handout supplied by the DLWD that indicates that of the benefits
received, a total of 17.7 percent go outside Al aska, she asked
how Alaska nonitors whether a person is doing what Al aska
requires to continue receiving benefits.

Nunmber 1348

MR. BLANKENSHI P responded that since 1948 [there has been] an
interstate benefit agreenent; the 53 signatories have agreed to
assi st each other in ensuring that those who draw U from one
state, but live in another, are exposed to the |abor market in
that state [of residence]. The requirenent is that a person

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- March 9, 2001



neet the work search and availability [criterial] from that
state, which are often nore stringent than Alaska' s mght be in
the winter.

CHAIR MURKOWSKI said a person [residing] outside Al aska would
have to check in with the job service where he or she is, and
that state would contact the DLWD [and relay] that he or she is
doing what [is required]. She asked if there are any states
that are not a part of the "conpact."

MR. BLANKENSHI P responded negati vely.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked about the average clai mant who works
[in Alaska] and then goes out of state [and clains U].

MR. BLANKENSHI P responded that oftentinmes these workers earn
wages in nore than one state. A comon exanple is a seafood
wor ker who cones up for a season, then goes back to his or her
state of origin and seeks work there until the next season in
Al aska. Simlarly, there are construction workers who wll
travel up to Al aska. The rate of benefits going out of the
state is [currently] lower than it has been over the last 20
years; traditionally, 20 to 24 percent went out of state.

Nunmber 1485

MR. HULL enphasized that people aren't coming up to Alaska to
earn benefits and take them out, because alnost every other
state pays nore benefits than [Al aska] does. He said there
m ght be seasonality issues in Alaska that aren't [present] in
ot her states.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked for a clarification of the average
weekly wage chart, and whether there was information showi ng a
conparison to other states on what [Alaska] is paying in actua
dol | ars.

MR. HULL pointed out that the state average-weekly-wage chart is
not [referring to] U benefits, but refers to salary. He
directed the commttee to the handouts and said there is a chart
that shows that 35 other states are tied to an indicator; the
chart shows the maxi num weekly benefit anount. He made a point
to say that the DLW could provide the informati on needed by the
comittee.

Nunmber 1605

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- March 9, 2001



MR.  HULL, responding to a request for <clarification on a
previ ous statement he nade, said that individuals wouldn't cone
to Alaska just to accrue wages in order to file for benefits
when they woul d be going to a state that actually pays nore.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTIT asked if federal enployees who retire from
the mlitary are eligible for U [benefits].

MR. BLANKENSHI P said there are tw issues involved and the
mlitary service can be considered covered service to establish
a claim The ex-mlitary person could establish that claimin
the state where he or she resides, and a person has a choice of
where he or she resides. Separate from the nonetary issue, one
nmust establish that he or she is able and willing to return to
full-tinme work. Any retirenent pay being received from the
mlitary would be deducted from [U] benefits on a dollar-for-
dol | ar basis, he said.

Nunber 1714

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT used another exanple of a person who has
been an air traffic controller all of his or her life. That
person is separated from the mlitary, and finding simlar
enployment is difficult. He asked if that person would be

eligible for Ul

MR. BLANKENSHI P said probably so. The benefits paid to that
person would be directly reinbursed by the federal governnent
and wouldn't cone from the state's trust fund; furthernore, if
he or she is attenpting to work in an occupation with limted
j ob opportunities, that person would be given a relatively short
period of tine before the DLMWD woul d expect him or her to expand
the job search to include other occupations.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked:

If that is in fact the case and the federal governnent
is reinmbursing our trust fund, if that is how it
wor ks, are those people that are identified as being
unenpl oyed and susceptible to drawing from that trust
fund, which is reinbursed, part of +the overall
popul ation, as far as we determned in the packet, of
[the] percentage of Al askans who are unenpl oyed?

MR. BLANKENSHI P responded that he believed so, and didn't know

why those people would be excl uded. The benefits paid woul dn't
come from the tax contributions of Al askan enployers unless the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- March 9, 2001



nunbers [in the charts] included those drawing from the trust
fund.

Nunber 1804

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT said Al aska has a large per-capita mlitary
[ popul ation], not only [those stationed] in the state, but also
those who stay in Alaska and are out there seeking enploynent.
Many of the mlitary occupations are not easily transferable, so
those nunbers [provided by the DLW could be skewed, when
conpared with states that my not have a large mlitary
popul ati on.

MR. HULL recalled an ex-mlitary enpl oyee who went into the job-
training program was trained in conputers, and ended up working
for the DLW in Juneau. He said he understood that a |ot of
what one learns in the mlitary doesn't translate [to the
civilian | abor force], but [the DLMWD] has prograns to help train
peopl e.

CHAIR MJURKOWSKI referred to teachers and how they are not
eligible for U during the summer nonths. If a teacher's
contract wasn't renewed, and he or she didn't have a job at the
begi nning of the school year, Chair Mirkowksi surm sed that the
person would be eligible for U

MR. BLANKENSHI P said the disqualification for the schoo
enpl oyee applies only to those benefits that are based on wages

earned from the educational institution; it only applies to
those who have worked in the first school year and have a
reasonabl e assurance of work in the next. |If a schoolteacher is

laid off in May and has no contract, he said, that person could
be eligible for benefits through the sumrer based on his or her
school wages; [benefits could extend] until that person has a
reasonabl e assurance of getting a simlar position with an
educational institution.

Number 1927

MR HULL clarified that those benefits wouldn't cone out of the
U trust fund, because the school district is a reinbursable

enpl oyer.

CHAIR MJRKOWSKI asked if Alaska is seeing an increase in
claimants who are teachers. She said in the past couple of
years in Anchorage, because of how the budget happens in the
school district and the state, there are "pink slips" that go

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- March 9, 2001



around toward the end of the school vyear, and there is no
certainty that teachers will be back; however, they are back at
t he begi nning of the year.

Nunmber 1966

MR. BLANKENSHI P responded in the negative. Generally teachers
don't file; a lot of the claims conme from school district
enpl oyees who are aides and substitute teachers. |If the teacher
works for a district where the budget is a perennial problem
yet it cones through at the last mnute, |oss of "reasonable
assurance" becones sonewhat questionable. In reality, [the
DLWD] knows that the Anchorage School District has had sone
significant cutbacks, he noted. If [teachers] have I ost
reasonabl e assurance and don't find out until the day before
school starts, it is not unti | t hat poi nt t hat t he
di squalification would be reappli ed.

MR. BLANKENSHI P clarified that reasonable assurance would be
[determ ned through] communication with the school district and
with the enpl oyee.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked about the grounds for denying U benefits.

Nunmber 2054

MR. BLANKENSHI P said if a person lost a job [due to a crim nal
act], there would be a disqualification [from benefits]. But if
[the offense] was not the cause for losing the job, and if that
person is able and seeking wirk and not incarcerated,
eligibility could still be established; however, the reason for

| osing the job could be a critical factor.
REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked how benefit amounts are figured.

MR. BLANKENSHIP replied that Alaska has a fairly standard
qualifying period that is used in npbst states. The first four
of the last five conpleted calendar quarters would be the
qual i fying period of wages. As happens with any other insurance
program if one doesn't incur a loss, one wll not get the
prem um back; but if a loss is incurred, a "snapshot" of wages
is taken. He said maxi mum benefits would be based on that |evel
of wages. Responding to a question about whether sonmeone could
get out what was paid in, he said pretty rarely.

MR. BLANKENSHI P expl ai ned that a person who earned $1,000 over a
couple of quarters in the year 2000 could file a claimon Apri

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- March 9, 2001



1 [2001] and would qualify for the bare mininmum in the current

wage schedule in statute. For every additional $250 of wages
[earned] during the calendar year 2000, that benefit anount
woul d increase by $2. The proposed |egislation extends that

schedul e, he renarked. He said $26,750 is the ampunt that a
person would have to earn to get $248 [a week], which is the
current nmaxi mum

Nunber 2166

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked if a person who had two part-tine jobs
and was laid off fromone could apply for U [benefits].

MR. HULL replied that a person could be working and get Ul.

MR. BLANKENSHI P added that [the DLWD] would reduce the benefits
by the wages [earned]. A person can earn up to $50 wthout
affecting the weekly check; after that the weekly check is
reduced by 75 cents for each dollar earned.

Nunber 2244

CHAI R MURKOABKI said she is sonewhat troubled that a person can
get U [benefits] while working.

MR. HULL replied that the reduction is severe; if a person is
drawing benefits and has a part-time job, this person is not
getting a whole | ot of noney.

MVR. BLANKENSHI P clarified that the conpensation is for
"underenpl oynent,” and there is a rapid decrease [in benefits]
unti | a person reaches what [the DLW)] defines as ful
enpl oynment, neaning a person either is working 40 hours a week
or has nmade one-and-a-third tinmes the benefit anmount plus the
$50. He said there are many claimants at the very |low end of
the enploynment scale who are marginally enployed and receive a
reduced anmount of benefits; however, they nust be available for
full-time work.

MR. BLANKENSHI P said he believes the philosophy of not cutting
off benefits immediately when a person begins work is to
encourage people to return to work; benefits would be gradually

phased out as people noved into work. He added that a person
couldn't earn nmuch noney and still receive benefits.
Nunber 2351

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- March 9, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE = CRAWFORD, speaking from experience as an
ironworker, said he is one of those people who have a |lot of
tenporary jobs, especially in the wintertinme when hours are cut.
[ Unenpl oynent | nsurance benefits] are not enough to |live on, he
enphasi zed, but are enough to "keep the wolf from the door
sonetines. "

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said he is in favor of raising U
[ benefit amounts]. From his perspective as an iron worker,
Alaska is loosing nore and nore workers because the weekly
benefits have fallen so far behind; Al aska doesn't provide
enough of a benefit during the winter to retain enployees, so
[workers] are going to other states and [Alaska is] not getting
a lot of those fol ks back. "We're" going to have to address
this if we want to retain our trained construction [workers],
and [workers fron] other areas of enploynent, he concl uded.

Nunber 2432

CHAIR MJURKOWNSKI said if a person is on a job, and because of a
"slowdown," is only working one day out of the week, [U]
encourages a person to stay on that job and finish it up, rather
than "quit it altogether and go out and | ook for one nore full-
time job."

TAPE 01-30, SIDE B
Nunmber 2456

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO requested clarification regarding his
understanding that the first week a person is on U, he or she
gets back what was paid in.

MR, HULL said it fluctuates with the tax rate, but he thinks
[the enployee deduction] is the highest that it has been in
years, around $114 to $120 [a year].

MR. BLANKENSHI P said the tax costs are split 80-20 between the
enpl oyer and the enpl oyee. The maxi mum an enpl oyee coul d pay
woul d be $120 or $130. He said he thought the average cost for
enpl oyers, per enployee, was a maxi mum of $530.

MR. HULL explained that there are 21 different rate classes for
taxes. He explained the chart. He said for a $500, 000 increase
in benefits, the taxes are raised $3 per year, per enployer.

Nunber 2377

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- March 9, 2001



CHAI R MURKOABKI asked why the nunbers junp around on the chart.

MR. HULL explained that it depends on the tax rate for [an
enpl oyer], and there is a nultiplier, so the higher the tax rate
where a person resides when that multiplier takes effect, the
nore that person's cost will go up [accordingly]. He pointed
out that there is no cost at all at the |lower end of the rate.

MR. BLANKENSHI P, responding to an earlier question from Chair
Mur kowski, said he, too, had noticed that the nunbers go up in
an unpredictable fashion on the chart, and had asked the
actuaries about it; he said the fornula is conplex, and he would
be glad to bring [the actuaries] in [to explain].

MR. BLANKENSHI P expl ained that the reason $500,000 was used -
instead of the $200,000 [figure] that [the DLW)] thought a

single $2 increase in benefits would cost - was because it
couldn't be calculated that small. A $500,000 increase in
benefit costs is still on the lower end of what [the actuaries]

can calculate, as far as an individual dollar increase per tax
rate.

Nunber 2318

CHAIR MJRKOABKI asked for confirmation that wth the 21
different rate classes, an enployer will be in a higher rate
class for a category such as construction, tourism or seafood
processing, in which there is a higher turnover wthin the
i ndustry.

MR. BLANKENSHI P said in general, that is correct. He expl ai ned
that rate classes 10 and 11 are the average tax rates cal cul ated
in the initial tax-rate formula; everything up and down from
there is [graduated] based on the portion of payroll [affected]
and the degree of risk that enpl oynent poses.

CHAIR MURKOWBKI asked if there was a process for |owering one's
rate.

Nunber 2250

MR. BLANKENSHI P replied that the Al aska tax schedul e determ nes
the experience rating, so called by the federal governnent,
which is how nmuch risk is posed by an entity's enploynment using
a payroll decline formula. If a payroll is relatively stable
t hroughout the year, a business would gravitate to the |ower tax
rates.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- March 9, 2001



CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked whether, if she owned a snmll busi ness and
lost half of her staff due to an unforeseen circunstance, she
could [nmake a case] to the DLWD that her rate shouldn't change.

MR.  BLANKENSHI P responded that the payroll dollars that a
conpany reports is what is used to calculate the tax rate. A
small "blip on the screen" wouldn't have a significant inpact on
the tax rate, he expl ai ned.

Number 2183

MR, HULL said the DLWD' s tax unit goes out and trains enployers
on how to lower their tax rates. He said the class is set up
with the Small Business Admnistration (SBA), the Interna
Revenue Service (IRS), and the DLW staff. He said "we" are not
in a "gotcha node"; if an enployer is doing sonething wong

there is help to lower the tax rate, but enployee turnover is a
problemthat [the DLMD] can't help a conpany with.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG referred to the chart entitled "Al aska's
Maxi mrum Weekly Benefit Amount Conpared with 50 percent Average
Weekly Earnings." He said this bill proposes to make a
fundanmental policy change in Al aska. If he is understanding
this chart correctly, it says that if [Al aska would have] had a
formula going all the way back to 1980, this is where [referring
to the chart] Al aska would be in ternms of a dollar pay out.

MR HULL said it shows what Al aska would have paid out if [the
DLWD] were paying out at 50 percent of the average weekly wage.

Nunber 2015

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said this bill provides a huge policy
change. Not only is it raising the average benefit, but it also
[changes] how it is calculated. He said it looks as if there is
at least a 10 percent increase to enployers over a period of
time.

MR. HULL said [the DLWD] would calculate that [and report back
to the commttee].

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG referred to page 6 of the bill, and
asked for clarification on the increnental approach.

MR. HULL said the calculation and the increnental approach are
in statute now, all the new bill does is extend the increnents.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- March 9, 2001



He said the first year would take "us" up to $284, referring to
the bold print on page 5 of the bill that has been added to the
current statute. The second step continues on, and is discussed
in Section 3, subsection (h), which extends it on to "not nore
than 50 percent of the average weekly wage."” He expl ained that
the DLWD would extend the $2 increment of benefits from $250 of
earni ngs out to $320.

Nunber 1931

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG referred to the handout provided by the
DLWD regarding the percentage of inpact to the calculation of
t ax. He said it goes from 2.08 [percent] to 2.18, and then to
2.28 the next year. He asked if it represents a two-year
i ncrease of 10 percent.

MR. HULL responded that it is 8 percent the first year, from
$248 to $284, and 9 percent the second year, from $284 to $320.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said it is actually greater than 17
percent, depending on how it is calculated. He asked if a |ower
base [ nunber] had been used.

M5. GAMEZ explained that she took the junp from $248 to $284
which is roughly 8 percent, and then she calculated from $284 to
$320, which is roughly 9 percent. She said, it is about a 9
percent increase over five years from the |ast increase. Thi s
would self-adjust, so there wouldn't be 8 and 9 percent
increases in the future; increases would be smaller or there
woul d be a decrease.

Nunber 1847

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said Alaska is raising not only the
benefit, but also the formula, which is huge. Over tine, it is
greater than a 10 percent increase in taxes with the second
increase increnent of .03 in contributions from enployers and
enpl oyees. Frankly, he said this conmttee was adjourned | ast
year increasing workers' conpensation benefits, which was a big
burden, particularly on snmall businesses. He said he hoped this
woul dn't be an annual thing comng out of the DLMD. He said he
is concerned about the nmacroeconomc inpact on the econony.
Al aska needs an adjustnment in benefits, but he asked if the
formul a needs to be changed by such a huge increnent.

MR. HULL responded that [the legislation] is not changing the
formula; it stays the sane. The tax rates are going to go up

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- March 9, 2001



he said, but [the DLWD] has shown that the fluctuations for an
enpl oyer will be less when [the rate] is tied to the indicator.

Nunber 1796

MR. HULL said if [Alaska] raises the benefits $90 over eight or
ten years, and during that tinme it is tied to an indicator, the
benefits would have [only] risen $36. He said [the state] has
to get there first, and that is the "leap" that "we" have to
take in the first two years.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if "we" are paying for all that is
received out of the federal and [state] trusts, because of the
"translation” through the federal governnent.

MR. HULL said [Alaska] does get an extra benefit because the
state gets to keep the interest being earned on the trust fund.
He remarked that Al aska wins as a small [popul ation] state.

Nunber 1747

M5. GAMEZ, speaking from six years' experience wth the
departnent, said [the DLWD] gets anywhere between 215 and 325
percent back in administrative funds to adm nister the program
Al aska is considered a "w nner" state. Many states get |ess
than 50 percent back for admnistrative funds. Al aska gets
about $22 million to adnmnister U, so in terms of benefits and
the trust fund, enployers pay into that; in terns of
adm ni stration, enployers pay nuch less in this state than in
any ot her.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG commented that Alaska is increasing
benefits 17 percent over a two-year period, and he asked what
taxes are being raised to pay for that.

M5. GAMEZ said the benefit is raised within three years, and the
tax effect is spread over a period of five to six years. The
enpl oyers woul dn't feel the inpact until 2003.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said if there is an annual adjustnent
under the statute to the average weekly wage, to the average
benefit, it is going to be an annual increase; if there is an
increase in wages, it is going to keep going up and accelerate
faster than what [the DLWD] testified to. He asked whether that
is correct.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- March 9, 2001



M5. GAMEZ said it depends on the wages in the state. The wages,
benefits, and tax rate could go either up or down. She referred
to the packet and said 35 other states have their benefits tied
to an indicator of sone sort.

Nunber 1650

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he wants to know what the cost to
enployers in Alaska wll be, because he is concerned about its
i npact on the econony and the "macro effect.”" He asked if "we"
are tal king about raising taxes $10 mllion or nore.

MR. BLANKENSHI P expl ai ned that if [Al aska] increases the benefit
anount, since the tax calculation is based on an average of
three years of benefit costs, it inpacts the tax rate; the ful
inmpact is not felt for three years. Regardi ng what the full
i mpact of this increase to $320 would be on the enployer, he
said the current tax rate for the average enployer is 2.08
percent; [the DLWD] anticipates that if it is increased to $320,
it would be 2.28 percent, or a 10 percent increase, not in ful
effect until 2007.

Nunber 1573

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked for confirmation that the 2.28
woul d be spread over the years. He referred to subsection (h)
and said wth the addition of +the average weekly wage
calculation going into effect 2003, [the DLW can neke the
adjustnment in the rate to the enpl oyer.

MR. BLANKENSHI P said if there is an increase to $320 January 1,
2003, when the tax rate is calculated for 2004, it wll be near
the end of 2003; only six nonths of that increased benefit cost
would go into [the DLW s] calculation. "Qur" calculation
average is 3 years, so only one sixth of that final step of
increase would be included in the calculation for 2004. The
cal cul ation for 2005 would have about half of the inpact of that
new i ncrease included in the tax cal cul ation.

MR. BLANKENSHI P said four-fifths of it [would be felt] in 2006,

with the full inpact in 2007. That section of statute could
adj ust, $320 in January of 2003 to $322 in January of 2004, or
down to $318. There could be sone adjustnent. He said the

chart attenpted to show that the changes in the past decade
woul d [ have been] relatively flat.

Number 1465

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- March 9, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG nentioned that Al aska is one of the only
states where enpl oyees nake contri butions. Swi tching gears, he
said periodic review of this [issue] by the legislature is not a
bad i dea.

CHAI R MURKOWSKI clarified her understanding that [the bill] is
not changing the formula, but the tax rate. She said it is
confusing because in Section 3 the fornula is changed because it
is no longer pegged to a fixed maxinmum weekly benefit, but
rather to 50 percent of the average weekly wage. She said to
her, that changes the formul a.

MR. BLANKENSHI P clarified that the "hard-coded fornula" that
allows a $2 benefit increase for every additional $250 for
qual i fying period wages would remain. Watever the new naxi mum
anount becones, if it's tied to 50 percent of the average weekly
wage, would extend to that new anount. The difference is that
it wouldn't be hard-coded in statute, but would be recal cul ated
at the beginning of each new year.

Number 1374

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO returned to the interstate claim issue.
He expressed concern about those that work and then |eave the
state and claim U ; however, he recognized that it wouldn't be
enough to live on. He asked what percentage of the 17.7 percent
conme back to the state to work.

MR. BLANKENSHI P responded that he didn't know the answer. He
said approximately 20 to 24 percent of [Alaska's U] dollars go
out of state, and, frankly, he was surprised to see that it was
down to 17.7. "We've" |ost the high-pay advantage. The | ast
figure he'd heard fromthe econom sts was that Al aska's wage was
1.03 [percent] of the national average; Al aska used to be known
for having a wage that was nuch higher than one would get in
anot her state. He surmsed that the decline of U claimnts
drawi ng benefits out of state mght be indicative of their not
ret urni ng.

Number 1271

M5. GAMEZ referred to a report done each year by the research
and analysis section, DLWD, called "Non Residents Wrking in

Al aska." Alaska is the only state that prepares that report,
whi ch goes by industry, wages that go out, what industries they
are in, and so forth. She said there is definitely a

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- March 9, 2001



correlation between that and the interstate clains against the
st ate.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT asked how nany people, drawing on Al aska's

U from out of state, draw the naxi num dollar anount. He was
interested to know if the [agreenent] between states is actually
wor ki ng. He said he would also |like to see data on those who

cone to the state and draw U from ot her states.

MR. BLANKENSHI P said he didn't have that information but could
get it for the commttee; however, the information on clainmants
in Alaska drawing U from other states would be nore difficult
to get. [The DLWD] would have to contact the individual states,
and Washi ngton and Oregon woul d be the easiest fromwhich to get
i nformation.

Number 1115

CHAI R MURKOWSKI said she would assunme that the nunbers residing
in other states [and drawing Alaska's U] could be gotten. She
said she would like to conpare that wth the weekly benefit in
i ndi vi dual states. People could make their own assunptions
based on the correlation, she pointed out.

MR. BLANKENSHI P said that figure is gathered weekly and is used
in the weekly "enpl oynent picture for the nation" report.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if there had ever been studies
about types of enploynent, to coordinate why Al aska has such a
di sproportionate nunber of out-of-state people. In the "old
days," he said, it was "W'Ill work and bust our chops in the
sumertinme, and then go on rocking-chair noney in the wntertine
[mentality],” just part of the "labor culture" of Al aska, unti

Al aska started devel oping wi nter construction techniques. Wth
the exception of agricultural-type production, Al aska seens to
be nore susceptible to enploynent seasonality. He asked if
there had been studies done to see what can be done to overcone
sone of those problens and "the interstate plight of our noney."

Nunmber 0986

MR. BLANKENSHI P responded that [the DLWD] has information about
the distribution of seasonal workers by industry and by
| ocat i on. The information has not been used by U to devel op
back-to-work programs, but M. Blankenship said he is certain
that it has been used by other agencies wthin division.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- March 9, 2001



M5. GAMEZ said, "W can ferret that out."

MR. HULL said the research and anal ysis section does research on
jobs and future jobs, which is pointing to things |like health
care as a field that people should be |ooking at in Al aska that
isn't seasonal; he said another way to keep everyone here is to
rai se the benefit so people don't want to | eave.

Nunmber 0906

REPRESENTATI VE RCOKEBERG said there is a correlation between the
seasonality and interstate workers, which used to be referred to
as the "snowbirds."

MR. HULL said he thought that is still true. He pointed out
that Al aska doesn't have a border state, and that other states
have border-state agreenents, although there may be l|less of an
inpact [in those states] than here.

MR. BLANKENSHI P said states that share geographic borders have
speci al problens tracking who is filing where, and who is paying
whom He said that is less of a difficulty for Alaska, which
has very few conmmuters from other states. He said at one tine
[the DLWD] knew that Al aska had wages that attracted people up
here, when the cost of living was |ower elsewhere, but this is
goi ng away.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked about seasonal enploynent and rate
cl asses.

Nunmber 0766

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked [hypothetically]: If he worked for
a conpany based out of Seattle and his check was from Seattle,
and he was laid off and clained benefits, wuld he get
Washi ngton benefits or Al askan benefits, because he is currently
in Al aska?

MR. BLANKENSHI P sai d any conpany doi ng business in Alaska has to
establish an Al askan account and pay taxes to [the DLWD], which
will issue that check.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO followed up by asking about the weekly
reports from the various states showing U recipients that are
living in Al aska now. He asked what type of interaction the
DLMWD has with those folks to satisfy the suitable-work clause
regardi ng Ul

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- March 9, 2001



MR. BLANKENSHI P said [the DLWD] includes interstate claimants in
the worker profiling reenploynent services. This is an
algorithm that identifies those likely to run out of noney
before finding another job, and refers those people to services.
He said people from other states m ght get |esser services than
Al aska; there is less contact with them than with in-state
peopl e who need worKk.

Nunmber 0650

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked if other states contact the DLW to
i nqui re about what a claimnt is doing in Alaska.

MR. BLANKENSHI P said traditionally that was the way the system
wor ked, because all of the states had in-person-filing
requirenents. Every week a person would have to stand in line
and see soneone in person who would nake sure that all of the
boxes were checked right, and [ensure that the claimnt] hadn't
refused work. Filing systens now have generally mgrated to
tel ephonic filing systens, so there 1is nore conputerized
identification of people who are likely to be unenpl oyed | onger
than the average, and the departnent can refer themto services.

Number 0572

MR.  BLANKENSHI P, responding to a question about cruise ship
enpl oyees and whether "we" count them said there are sone
special provisions for maritine enployees. |If a person is hired
out of Seattle or Vancouver and works on the ship and not on
shore, nobst would not be covered by Al aska tax; however, there
are sone exceptions in the seafood industry. There is a
conplexity there that he is not famliar with, he said.

Number 0503

JOHN BROWN, International Union of Operating Engineers (IUCE)
Local 302, and President of the Central Labor Council, said he
supports HB 58. Unenpl oynment Insurance is vitally inportant to
construction workers, whom he represents; construction workers
are vitally inportant to Alaska, as a young growi ng state that
still needs to build infrastructure. Construction is a huge
part of our econony, and it appears that it will be growing with
sone of the projects "online" to go.

MR. BROMW said without U, there is no way [Alaska] is going to
be able to retain the workforce that is needed to conplete these

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- March 9, 2001



projects, and to nmaintain the ones that are done on a regular
basi s. The evidence is clear with the testinony from the
departnent that the nunbers are on the way down, as far as being
able to attract workers to Alaska, and workers are just not
com ng here. "We" need to find ways to keep the workers that
are already here, and to attract new ones to the industry.

MR. BROWN said without a reason for people to stay, and w thout
raising U, "we" are "cutting our own throats." He urged the
commttee to pass the bill

Nunmber 0300

KIM GARNERO, Director, Division of Finance, Departnent of
Adm ni stration, introduced the fiscal note indicating the
budgetary inpact of HB 58 on the State of Al aska. Li ke the
school districts, the state is a reinbursable enployer for Ul
she said. "We" don't nake tax contributions based on enployer
experience ratings; rather, "we" reinburse the U conpensation
fund for actual paynents nade to fornmer enployees. The state
[al | ocates] about $4 million a year in U. A 15 percent
increase in benefits, as proposed by this legislation, results
in an annual increase for payroll costs of $590,000 to the
state's budget.

M5. GARNERO, responding to a question, clarified that the
$590,000 is the increnental step for 2003.

M5. GARNERO said [the departnment] assuned a 15 percent increase
starting half way through the first year and through the life of
the fiscal note. She would like the U fund actuary to | ook at
the fiscal note, and said she would redo it after that. She
expl ai ned that the $284 or $248 was calculated as a 15 percent
increase in benefits.

Number 0130

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked for clarification of why the fund
source [on the fiscal note] says "other." He also asked if the
state contributes to the fund and where the noney cones from

M5. GARNERO said the noney for the reinbursenent cones from the
wor ki ng reserves. As authorized under Title 37 of the Al aska
Statutes, all state agencies pay into the working reserves based
on rates developed by the D vision of Finance, Departnent of
Adm ni stration. The noney accunulated in the worker reserve
pays for |leave "cash-ins," termnal |eave, as well as worker

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -23- March 9, 2001



conpensation. The source of those funds is an assessnent on an
enpl oyer's charge on payroll, comng out of all funding sources
that pay for payroll across the state.

TAPE 01-31, SIDE A
Number 0031

CHAI R MJRKOWBKI said the departnment and division have indicated
that there are items they would like to provide to commttee
nmenbers. She said the bill goes onto the House Finance
Commttee next, and the House Labor and Commerce Conmmittee is
the primary coomittee of review. She stated that she would |ike
to make sure that all the nenbers are confortable with this

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked if Chair Murkowski would be accepting
anendnents the next tine the bill cones before the committee.

CHAI R MJURKOWSKI responded that she thought the conmttee would
be ready. She hadn't heard that there was desire for further
public coment on the bill, she said. She appreciates the
departnent's effort to educate the commttee, and said it has
been very hel pful.

Number 0204

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT commented that the neeting was advertised as
usual, and there were no business people out there "clanoring”
that this is going to "break the bank.” Alaska is last in the
nation, and there has always been this notion that "we" are open
for business; this says, not only are "we" open for business,
but Al aska is open for enployees. It is inportant to recognize
that this group was notably absent, he said, although he wasn't
sure why.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked the departnent for information on who
is ineligible for U. He said he hadn't realized that if a
person was fired or quit a job, eventually he or she could draw
ul .

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said he would be interested in seeing the
breakdown on seasonal enployees and how [Alaska] conpares to
other states as far as interstate clains. He thinks workers
need to be protected if they are to stay in the state, he said.
If the "rocking chair" noney is going out of state for four or
five nonths, and then dropping off [when that person] gets
anot her job, [Alaska] should take a look at that; [Alaska] is
possi bly very seasonal [when] conpared to other states, he said.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 24- March 9, 2001



Number 0339

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG comment ed that one of the reasons Al aska
has an enpl oyee contribution is to try to dissuade people from
that type of thing, because |[Alaska] has such a transient
wor kf or ce. Peopl e have an investnent in it and feel that they

are making a contribution. This "super anount of |eakage" is
al ways very troubl esone. He added that he would not be
confortable with any bill that takes away the review [process]

fromthe legislature. [HB 58 was held over.]
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
5:02 p.m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -25- March 9, 2001



